
JOINT COMMISSIONER 
BOARD MEETING 

October 30, 2019 
Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 

LAKE STEVENS FIRE AND  
SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT #7 

WASHINGTON 

1



 

 

 

 

JOINT AGENDA 

2



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 1 of 3 
October 30, 2019 

 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS JOINT MEETING AGENDA 
LAKE STEVENS FIRE / FIRE DISTRICT 7 

Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 
163 Village Court, Monroe, WA  98272 

 
October 30, 2019   1730 hours 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
 

FIRE DISTRICT 7 REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
 
UNION COMMENT 
IAFF 
Teamsters 
 
FIRE CHIEF REPORT 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Approve Vouchers 
• Benefit Vouchers: #19-02497 - #19-02504; ($407,157.70) Previously Signed 
• Benefit Voucher: #19-02514; ($157,799.56) L&I Taxes 
• AP Vouchers: #19-02156 - #19-02674; ($243,325.74) 

 
Approve Payroll 
October 31, 2019; ($797,780.62) 
 
Approval of Minutes 
Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes – October 10, 2019 
 
Secretary’s Report on Correspondence 
Thank you message 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
Resolution 2019-19 – Annexation of Unincorporated Areas 
Budget Amendment #3 
 
ACTION ITEM 
Policy 1-33 – Meals, Lodging, Travel and Incidentals 
Emergency Medical Supplies – Accepting a Request for Proposal 
 
 

3



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 2 of 3 
October 30, 2019 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMITTEE REPORTS 
Joint Fire Board with Mill Creek (Fay / Woolery / Waugh): TBD / Mill Creek City Hall 
Finance Committee (Waugh / Wells / Snyder): October 29, 2019 – 14:00 / District 7 Admin Bldg 
Policy Committee (Wells / Woolery / Schaub): TBD / Admin Bldg. 
Risk Management (Schaub): November 5, 2019 – 19:00 / Snohomish Co. FD 22 
Labor/Management (Waugh / Wells / Fay): TBD 
Impact Bargaining – IAFF Local 2781 (Waugh, Wells, Fay): Monday, October 28, 2019 – 13:00 / Admin 
Bldg 
Impact Bargaining – Teamsters (Wells): TBD 
Shop Committee – (Snyder / Woolery / Fay): TBD 
Strategic Plan Committee – (Fay / Schaub / Wells) 
Capital Facilities Committee - (Schaub / Snyder / Woolery) 
Station 33 
Station 72 
Station 32 
Station 76 
 
OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
Snohomish County 911 (Waugh) 
Regional Coordination 
Leadership Meeting (Fay / Schaub / Wells): Wednesday December 4, 2019 – 09:00 / Sta 31 – Training Room 
Sno-Isle Commissioner Meeting: Thursday, November 7, 2019 – 19:30 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
CALL ON COMMISSIONERS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
RCW 42.30.140(4)(a) - IAFF Bargaining - Memorandum of Understanding 
RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) – Staff Contracts (3 items) 
 
 

LAKE STEVENS FIRE REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS 
 
MINUTES 
Minutes 19-10-10 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
Investment Report 
Vouchers 
Payroll 
Expense Line Item Review Summary & Reports 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Discussion 

4



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 3 of 3 
October 30, 2019 

 

Merger with Fire District 7  
Fire Station 84 
Temporary Lake Stevens Fire Office 
 
Action 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion 
 
Action 
 
CHIEF’S REPORT 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 

JOINT MEETING BUSINESS 
 
DRAFT BOARD RULES AND POLICIES 
Chairman Waugh would like to address standing committees. 
 
MEETING RULES OF ENGAGEMENT 
 
 
MERGER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 
FUTURE BOARD SIZE 
 
 
CULTURAL INTEGRATION TEAM 
 
 
NAME WORK GROUP 
 
 
NEXT JOINT COMMISSIONER MEETING 
5:30pm Thursday, November 14 at the Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

5



 

 

 

 

DISTRICT 7 
REGULAR BUSINESS 

6



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

FIRE CHIEF REPORT 
 

7



                                                                 

 

 
To: Board of Fire Commissioners 
From: Gary A. Meek, Fire Chief 
Subj: Fire Chief Report for October 30, 2019 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Fire Chief’s Report: 
 
1. Mitch continues to communicate with the attorney for Allied Construction to come to resolution.  A 

formal offer has been submitted to the mediator, we are awaiting a response from Allied. 
2. We continue to be busy responding to social media sites and the comments from our citizens regarding 

our request for a levy lift. 
3. We have been busy conducting presentations to community groups.  During the past 2 weeks we have 

presented to the following groups: 
a. Monroe VFW 
b. Coffee with the Chief – Live Facebook Event 
c. Scheduled coffee with local reporters 
d. Community Meeting – Station 71 
e. Community Meeting – Station 31 

5. The Communications Committee continues to work with Liz Loomis. 
6. Commissioners Wells, Waugh, Fay, Woolery and Schaub and Chiefs Meek, Silva and Andrews 

attended the Washington Fire Commissioner Conference at the Tulalip Casino Resort.  Commissioner 
Wells received the Honorary Life Membership Award at this conference. 

7. Impact bargaining was conducted on October 28th with the IAFF Union.  This will be discussed in 
Executive Session. 

8. Executive Staff interviews were conducted for the development of the new Leadership Team.  A 
memorandum was distributed to the District announcing position assignments effective January 1, 
2020.  Congratulations to all who participated.  We look forward to working with and developing this 
new team. 

9. The annual Fire Prevention Week Open House was conducted at Station 31 with approximately 600 
people in attendance.  Thank you to everyone who made this a great success and special thanks to 
Heather and Kaitlin for their hard work and coordination. 

10. Staff have been working on the accomplishments / goals presentation for the Board. 
 
 
Finance Officer’s Report: 
 
1. We have billed the city of Mill Creek for the 4th quarter service payment in the amount of $982,686.25. 
2. The auditors are still working on the annual audit, but are no longer on site.  
3. We are continuing to work on updates to the 2020 forecasting model. 
4. We are working on the 2020 budget, and will be going over the draft at our upcoming finance committee 

meeting. Our budget hearing is scheduled for the November 14th Board meeting. 
5. The tables below show the number of transports, gross transport revenues, and MVC revenues, billed 

by Systems Design during the month of September 2019, and during the same month for each of the 
2 previous years. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



                                                                 

 

 
 
 

Systems Design No. of Transports Billed for District 7 2019 2018 2017 

 
September 

 
 

 
388 

 

 
322 

 
416 

     
Systems Design Transport Revenues for District 7 2019 2018 2017 
 
September 

  
$147,671 

 
$107,206 

 
$143,688 

                              
Systems Design MVC Revenues for District 7 2019 2018 2017 
 
 
September  $1,050 

 
$0 

         
            
          $0 

         
 
 
6. Below is a comparison of the District’s year to date expenditures for all funds combined through the 

month of September for 2017, 2018, and 2019, and the percent of the budgets spent.  For additional 
details on the 2019 expenditures please refer to the upcoming quarterly report. 

Expenditure Comparison - All Funds 
Expenditures 2019 2018 2017 
         
September  $     34,105,752   $32,319,908   $28,838,675       
% of Total Budget Spent 2019 2018 2017 
    
September 63% 65% 64% 
 
 

7. Below is a comparison of the District’s year to date revenues and expenditures for the General Fund 
through the month of September in 2017, 2018, and 2019, and the percent of the corresponding 
budgets. 

Revenue Comparison - General Fund 
Revenues 2019 2018 2017 
      

September  $     27,849,055  
 
$21,304,232   $18,890,495  

% of Total Budgeted Revenues 
Received 2019 2018 2017 
    
September 64% 57% 59% 

    

9



                                                                 

 

  
 
  

Expenditure Comparison - General Fund 
Expenditures 2019 2018 2017 
       

September     $     30,899,981  
 
$25,308,416   $23,458,130  

% of Total Budget Spent 2019 2018 2017 
    
September      69% 68% 73% 
 

8. Below is a comparison of the combined year to date property tax collected through September of 2017, 
2018, and 2019. These include General Fund Regular, EMS, M&O as well as property taxes collected 
in the Bond Fund. 

Revenue Comparison - Property Taxes 
Regular, EMS, M&O, and Bond Fund  2019 2018 2017 
     

September  $     17,493,175  
 
$16,647,190  $     14,377,553  

% of Property Taxes Collected 2019 2018 2017 
    
September 55% 54% 55% 
 

9. Below is a chart showing the 2019 year to date property tax collections as compared with expected 
collections.  

 

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

 35,000,000

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Property Taxes

Dist Taxes Estimate Actual

10



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



 
 

Payroll Summary 10/31/2019 
 

Check Date 10/31/2019 
Period Begin 10/16/2019 
Period End 10/31/2019 
  
  
Direct Deposits $631,205.49 
Paper Checks $9,320.40 
Taxes $157,254.73 
Total $797,780.62 

 

19



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 1 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS JOINT MEETING MINUTES 
LAKE STEVENS FIRE / FIRE DISTRICT 7 

Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 
163 Village Court, Monroe, WA  98272 

 
October 10, 2019   1730 hours 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Vice Chair Steinruck and Chairman Waugh called the meeting to order at 1730 hours. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present for LSF: Vice Chair Steinruck, Commissioner Gagnon, Chief O’Brien, Deputy Chief Huff, Deputy Chief/Fire 
Marshal Messer, Director of Finance & Administration Leah Schoof, and Communications Director/District Secretary 
Laana Larson. 
 
Present for Fire District 7: Chairman Waugh, Commissioner Schaub, Commissioner Woolery, Commissioner Fay, 
Commissioner Wells, Chief Meek, District Administrative Coordinator Denise Mattern, and various members from 
the District. 
 
Excused absences: Chairman Elmore and Vice Chair Snyder. 
 

FIRE DISTRICT 7 REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
BADGE PINNING CEREMONY 
Driver/Operator for D.J. Mattern 
New Employee / Public Educator for Kaitlin King 
 
Chief Meek commented it is our privilege to pin a couple of our new members, and he gave a little history for each 
employee.  D.J. Mattern was promoted to Driver/Operator and Kaitlin King was hired as Public Education Specialist.  
Both took their oaths for Fire District 7 and Chief Meek pinned on their badges. Congratulations! 
 
UNION COMMENT 
IAFF 
Teamsters 
No additional comment. 
 
FIRE CHIEF REPORT 
As presented. 
 
Chief Meek distributed the FAQ / Quick info to the Commissioners for their reference regarding the levy lid lift. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Vouchers: 
1)  Benefit Vouchers: None  
2) AP Vouchers: #19-02408 - #19-02495; ($296,900.32) 

B. Approve Payroll: October 15, 2019; ($738,954.71) 

20



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 2 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

C. Approval of Minutes 
1) Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes – September 26, 2019 
2) Approve Joint Commissioner Retreat Minutes – September 28-30, 2019 

D. Secretary’s Report on Correspondence 
 
Motion to approve consent agenda as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Woolery and 2nd by Commissioner Schaub. 
Vote Passed, Vice Chair Snyder is an excused absence. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 

A. Policy 1-33 – Meals, Lodging & Travel 
Commissioner Woolery noted one change about personal vehicles; and a couple minor items were deleted.  These are 
mostly housekeeping issues to update the policy. 
 
No additional questions. 
 
ACTION ITEM 

A. RESOLUTION NO. 2019-17 – Accepting Petitions to Annex 
Chief Meek commented this resolution is for the Board accepting the petitions.  Once approved, the next steps will 
include a public hearing, then sign a resolution and send to the Boundary Review Board. 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-17 Accepting Petitions to Annex as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Wells and 2nd by Commissioner Schaub. 
Vote Passed, Vice Chair Snyder is an excused absence. 
 

B. Policy 60 – Department Awards Program 
Chief Meek commented the auditor recommended the change noted in the first paragraph and last sentence.  This is 
simply a housekeeping issue. 
 
Motion to adopt Policy 60 Department Awards Program as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Woolery and 2nd by Commissioner Wells. 
Vote Passed, Vice Chair Snyder is an excused absence. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Joint Fire Board with Mill Creek (Fay / Woolery / Waugh) 
1) TBD 

Commissioner Woolery commented we had three commissioners and the city manager in attendance.  They discussed 
emergency preparedness and basically got reacquainted with everyone. 
 
Chairman Waugh commented he suggested that they discuss reverse annexation. 
 
Chief Meek commented he asked about the status of the CPSM study, a standard of cover efficiencies type study. 
 
Chairman Waugh commented it would help to have a presence at City Council meetings. 
 
 
 
 

21



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 3 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

B. Finance Committee (Waugh / Wells / Snyder) 
1) TBD 

Chairman Waugh commented we are looking at October 28 or 29 at 9am for a meeting date.  He asked Camille to 
please send an email for those two dates.  He also requested an LSF Commissioner to participate in this meeting as it 
will be a joint budget presentation.  Commissioner Gagnon will see if he or Commissioner Elmore would be able to 
participate. 
 

C. Policy Committee (Wells / Woolery / Schaub) 
1) TBD / Admin Bldg. 

D. Risk Management (Schaub) 
1) November 5, 2019 – 19:00 / Snohomish Co. FD 22 

F. Labor / Management (Waugh / Wells / Fay) 
1) TBD 

G. Impact Bargaining – IAFF Local 2781 (Waugh / Wells / Fay) 
1) Thursday, October 17, 2019 – 13:30 / Admin Bldg 

H. Impact Bargaining – Teamsters (Wells) 
1) TBD 

I. Shop Committee – (Snyder / Woolery / Fay) 
1) TBD 

J. Strategic Plan Committee – (Fay / Schaub / Wells) 
K. Capital Facilities Committee - (Schaub / Snyder / Woolery) 

1) Station 33 
2) Station 72 
3) Station 32 
4) Station 76 

 
Chairman Waugh commented we still need a cost estimate on the facilities. 
 
Assistant Chief Steve Guptill commented we are working on the last set of tours with the Commissioners and then 
we can have the discussion about moving forward. 
 
OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED 

A. Snohomish County 911 (Waugh) 
Chairman Waugh commented there has been notice of a delay on radio distribution. 
 

B. Regional Coordination 
 

C. Leadership Meeting (Fay / Schaub / Wells) 
1) Wednesday December 4, 2019 – 09:00 / Station 31 – Training Room 

Commissioner Schaub commented we enjoyed the Leadership Meeting last week.  Chief O’Brien and Chief Meek 
did a great job presenting it.  It was very positive. 
 

D. Sno-Isle Commissioner Meeting 
1) Thursday, November 7, 2019 – 19:30 – Getchell Fire 

Chairman Waugh commented the last Sno-Isle Fire Commissioner Meeting was a bit of a disappointment; as 
there was not a lot of participation in the discussion at the meeting.  He appreciated Chief O’Brien asking why the 
members are involved with the Sno-Isle Fire Commissioners Association.  We need to move past the social aspect 
and address the topics at hand. 
 

22



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 4 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

E. REMINDER - Washington Fire Commissioners Conference 
1) October 23 – 26, 2019 / Tulalip Casino 

Chairman Waugh commented he will be reaching out for help with the setting up of the hospitality room. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 
CALL ON COMMISSIONERS 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Chairman Waugh commented there will be an executive session at the end of tonight’s meeting to discuss Collective 
Bargaining Negotiations pursuant to RCW 42.30.140 (4) (a) and to review staff contract / to review the performance 
of a public employee pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g). 
 

LAKE STEVENS FIRE REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS 
None 
 
MINUTES 
Minutes 19-09-26 
Minutes 19-09-28 
 
Motion to approve the September 26 and September 28-30, 2019 Commissioner Meeting minutes as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Gagnon and 2nd by Vice Chair Steinruck. 
Vote Passed, Chairman Elmore is an excused absence. 
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 
Vouchers 
 
Motion to approve Expense Vouchers dated September 26, 2019 in the total amount of $64,841.04 as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Gagnon and 2nd by Vice Chair Steinruck. 
Vote Passed, Chairman Elmore is an excused absence. 
 
Expense Line Item Review Summary & Reports 
Director of Finance & Administration Leah Schoof commented there are no additions for the report at this time. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS  
Discussion 
Merger with Fire District 7  
Chief O’Brien commented things are going well with the merge.  The Boundary Review Board let us know our 
resolution has been received.  
 
Chief O’Brien commented we are going through the executive senior staff interviews, and our new org chart should 
be set up by the end of the month.  Our crews continue to work well together. 

23



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 5 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

Fire Station 84 
Chief O’Brien commented Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal Messer is working on getting the traffic study completed.  
 
Deputy Chief/Fire Marshal Messer commented the RFQ will be received by Friday, October 18th.  We are also in the 
process of submitting to the City of Lake Stevens a request for consolidation of the four parcels into one. 
 
Chief O’Brien commented we are also working on a sign with the architect to talk about the future fire station. 
 
Temporary Lake Stevens Fire Office 
Chief O’Brien commented we are looking at a plan to have office space at Station 82.  We decided not to proceed with 
another building at this time. 
 
Action 
Resolution 2019-10 Changing Regular Meeting Schedule 
Vice Chair Steinruck commented this resolution notes our Regular Commissioner Meeting Schedule for the 
remainder of the year. 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-10 Changing Regular Meeting Schedule as submitted. 
Motion by Vice Chair Steinruck and 2nd by Commissioner Gagnon. 
Vote Passed, Chairman Elmore is an excused absence. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion 
None 
 
Action 
Resolution 2019-11 Declaring Property Surplus 
Chief O’Brien explained this resolution is to surplus the Fire Safety House and the Station 82 Inflatable Boat. 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution 2019-11 Declaring Property Surplus and Authorizing Disposal of Surplus as submitted. 
Motion by Commissioner Gagnon and 2nd by Vice Chair Steinruck. 
Vote Passed, Chairman Elmore is an excused absence. 
 
CHIEF’S REPORT 
Chief O’Brien presented the following report: 

• Attended the City of Lake Stevens Staff Meeting.  Their new pavilion has been started downtown, they are 
searching for a new HR director, they are busy with elections, and they appreciate our relationship.  They are 
pleased with the merger. 
 

• We are currently going through the Driver/Operator Examination process, and we plan to have 12 
promotions. 
 

• Our Training Captain Examination is scheduled for next Monday. 
 

• The State Auditor is still working with us at Lake Stevens Fire. 
 

• We are looking forward to Fire District 7’s Open House this Saturday afternoon at Station 31. 
 

24



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 6 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

• Lake Stevens Fire has an Open House 6pm Tuesday, October 29 at Station 81; including promotions, badge 
pinning, honorary member presentation and thanking our Lake Stevens community for their support. 
 

• Harvest Festival scheduled for Thursday, October 31 from 5-8pm Downtown Lake Stevens. 
 

• Lake Stevens Fire has their Annual Banquet scheduled for Saturday, November 2. 
 

• Thank you to our members for their hard work. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
Commissioner Gagnon commented everyone is doing great; and he appreciated the opportunity to get to know one 
another better at the Commissioner Retreat. 
 
Vice Chair Steinruck commented he appreciates all the hard work going on between Lake Stevens Fire and Fire 
District 7; he also appreciated the Commissioner Retreat. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
None 
 

JOINT MEETING BUSINESS 
 
DRAFT BOARD RULES AND POLICIES  
Chairman Waugh commented we still need to address standing committees for this policy, and maybe at the next 
Commissioner Meeting we could create a list. 
 
MEETING RULES OF ENGAGEMENT 
Chairman Waugh commented we added a few more rules to the list at the Commissioner Retreat.  He suggested we 
add another thought, valuing the perspective of others.  For example, if another Commissioner name/comment comes 
up in a conversation, give them a call and clarify the message.  Let’s get the message straight from the person rather 
than relying on hearsay. 
 
Chief O’Brien suggested we seek understanding from all involved on the topic. 
 
Commissioner Fay suggested we strive for engagement. 
 
Commissioner Schaub mentioned a favorite quote from a cultural anthropologist, “Tell the truth without blame or 
judgement.” 
 
Chief O’Brien commented he appreciates the Commissioners engaging in this.  It sends a great message to the rest of 
the organization. 
 
MERGER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
Chief O’Brien commented we are moving forward with the updated Merger Management Plan.  We are currently 
interviewing folks, and we will continue to keep you posted. 
 
COMMISSIONER RETREAT REVIEW 
No additional comment. 
 
 

25



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 7 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

FUTURE BOARD SIZE 
Legal Counsel Brian Snure recommended since the merged District will have, unless vacancies occur, nine members 
until the 2021 election, the best initial approach is to attempt to obtain a legislative fix in the 2020 legislative session.  
He does not believe the fix would be controversial but, even if it took until the 2021 legislative session, the Board 
would be able to run a ballot measure prior to or simultaneous with the 2021 general election.  He would be happy to 
draft the basic change needed.  If it doesn’t appear to go anywhere, we could look at other alternatives at that time. 
 
Commissioner Woolery asked about the opposite situation where a board might want to decrease their size, and 
suggested we consider this as well. 
 
CULTURAL INTEGRATION TEAM 
No additional comment. 
 
NAME WORK GROUP 
Chief O’Brien commented we are going to get this group up and running real soon.  Dr. Pat Sikora will be working 
with this group.  Commissioner Woolery, Commissioner Schaub and Chairman Elmore will be on this committee 
representing the Commissioners. 
 
NEXT JOINT COMMISSIONER MEETING 
5:30pm Wednesday, October 30th at the Fire District 7 Station 31 Training Room 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
At 1820 hours Chairman Waugh called for an executive session to discuss Collective Bargaining Negotiations 
pursuant to RCW 42.30.140 (4) (a) and to review staff contract / to review the performance of a public employee 
pursuant to RCW 42.30.110 (1) (g) for 30 minutes with possible action to follow.  Executive session included 
Chairman Waugh, Commissioner Schaub, Commissioner Woolery, Commissioner Fay, Commissioner Wells, CFO 
Camille Tabor, Human Resources Director Pamella Holtgeerts, Vice Chair Steinruck, Commissioner Gagnon, 
Chairman Elmore participated via conference call, Chief O’Brien, Brian Snure, Deputy Chief Huff, and Director of 
Finance & Administration Leah Schoof.  
 
At 1850 hours Chairman Waugh announced to the public that the executive session would be continued for an 
additional hour and ten minutes. 
 
Chairman Waugh reconvened the open public meeting at 2000 hours and the meeting moved forward with the 
following motions.   
 
Motion to direct the bargaining team to support the District counter proposal as presented by the Chief in executive 
session. 
Motion by Commissioner Wells and 2nd by Commissioner Gagnon. 
Vote Passed.   
Those in favor: Commissioner Schaub, Commissioner Woolery, Chairman Elmore, Vice Chair Steinruck, and 
Commissioner Gagnon. 
Those opposed: Chairman Waugh, Commissioner Fay, and Commissioner Wells.   
Vice Chair Snyder is an excused absence. 
 
Motion for consideration for retirement benefit as presented in executive session. 
Motion by Commissioner Woolery and 2nd by Commissioner Wells. 
Vote Passed, all present in favor.  Vice Chair Snyder is an excused absence. 
 

26



                                                                 
 
 
 

               

Page 8 of 8 
October 10, 2019 

 

Commissioner Wells asked about the cost for the Commissioner Retreat. 
 
Chairman Waugh reminded everyone there is an Open House for Fire District 7 on Saturday. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Vice Chair Steinruck and Chairman Waugh adjourned the meeting at 2007 hours. 
 
Snohomish County Fire District #7 
 
 
                             
Jamie Silva 
Secretary of the Board 
 

27



1

Kippy Powers

From: Heather Chadwick
Sent: Monday, October 14, 2019 8:20 AM
To: Gary Meek
Subject: FW: Thank you!

 
 

 
Heather Chadwick 
Public Information & Education Officer 
163 Village Court 
Monroe, WA 98272 
Office: (360) 282-3962 
Cell: (425) 245-2662 
hchadwick@snofire7.org 
Facebook |  @SnoCountyFire7  |  Nextdoor 
 
“Earning Trust Through Action” 
 
 
 
This message is intended for the sole use of the addressee, and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure 
under applicable law. If you are not the addressee you are hereby notified that you may not use, copy, disclose, or distribute to anyone the message 
or any information contained in the message. If you have received this message in error, please immediately advise the sender by reply email and 
delete this message. 

 

From: Asheim, Alexander ‐ Alexander [mailto:alexander.asheim@store.lowes.com]  
Sent: Saturday, October 12, 2019 12:01 PM 
To: Heather Chadwick <hchadwick@snofire7.org> 
Cc: Johnston, Stacy ‐ Stacy A <stacy.a.johnston@lowes.com>; Hopka, Shane ‐ Shane <shane.hopka@store.lowes.com> 
Subject: Thank you! 

 
Heather, 
 
Thank you for helping to make our Fire Safety Day a success here at the Mill Creek Lowe's! The kids absolutely 
loved the Fire Truck tours and all of the firefighters were absolutely fantastic. I figured I'd share a couple 
pictures with you from the event. 
 
Until next time! 
 

28



2

29



3

 

 

30



4

 

31



5

 

32



6

 

33



7

 
Alexander Asheim 
AP & Safety Manager, #1573 
Mill Creek, WA 

NOTICE: All information in and attached to the e-mails below may be proprietary, confidential, privileged and 
otherwise protected from improper or erroneous disclosure. If you are not the sender's intended recipient, you 
are not authorized to intercept, read, print, retain, copy, forward, or disseminate this message. If you have 

34



8

erroneously received this communication, please notify the sender immediately by phone (704-758-1000) or by 
e-mail and destroy all copies of this message electronic, paper, or otherwise. By transmitting documents via this 
email: Users, Customers, Suppliers and Vendors collectively acknowledge and agree the transmittal of 
information via email is voluntary, is offered as a convenience, and is not a secured method of communication; 
Not to transmit any payment information E.G. credit card, debit card, checking account, wire transfer 
information, passwords, or sensitive and personal information E.G. Driver's license, DOB, social security, or 
any other information the user wishes to remain confidential; To transmit only non-confidential information 
such as plans, pictures and drawings and to assume all risk and liability for and indemnify Lowe's from any 
claims, losses or damages that may arise from the transmittal of documents or including non-confidential 
information in the body of an email transmittal. Thank you.  
 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE:  
This message is intended for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed, and may contain 
information that is privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under applicable law. Any unauthorized 
use, distribution, or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify 
sender immediately and destroy/delete the original transmission. Any correspondence from or to this e-mail 
account may be a public record. Accordingly, this e-mail, in whole or in part, may be subject to disclosure 
pursuant to RCW 42.56, regardless of any claim of confidentiality or privilege asserted by an external party. 
Snohomish County Fire Protection District 7 - EMail Disclaimer  

35



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

36



1 
 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-19 
 

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Fire Commissioners (the “Board”) of Snohomish County Fire Protection 
District No. 7 (the “District”), regarding approval of annexation of unincorporated area into the District. 

 
WHEREAS, the District has received petitions (the “Annexation Petitions”) signed by 100% of the owners 
of the area which has the legal descriptions attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and that includes properties 
having the tax parcel numbers attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Territory”); 

 
WHEREAS, the Territory is an unincorporated area adjacent to the District, but not within the boundaries 
of any fire protection district, city or town; 

 
WHEREAS, the Annexation Petition appears to be in compliance with RCW 52.04.031; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for the District accepted the Annexation Petitions and fixed a 
date for a public hearing on 11/14/19, with notice of such hearing being appropriately posted and 
published according to law;  

 
WHEREAS, on 11/14/19, a public hearing was held at which testimony from the public was taken 
concerning the annexation; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners for the District finds that it would be in the public’s best interest, 
welfare, safety and convenience that the Territory be annexed into the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 52.04.011, the Boundary Review Board must approve an annexation 
before the County may require the area to assume the District’s indebtedness. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE: 
  

1. The Territory shall be annexed into the District, subject to review by the Snohomish County 
Boundary Review Board, if such jurisdiction is invoked. 

 
2. Staff is directed to submit this resolution to the Snohomish County Boundary Review Board as 

provided in RCW 52.04.051 for further proceedings.   
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Fire Commissioners of Snohomish County Fire Protection District No. 7, at an 
open public meeting thereof this 14th day of November, 2019 of which notice was given in the manner 
provided by law, the following Commissioners being present and voting. 
 
 
By:       
 RANDY FAY 
     Fire Commissioner 
 
 

By:       
  LESLIE JO WELLS 
     Fire Commissioner 
 

By:       
  WILLIAM SNYDER 
     Fire Commissioner 
 
 

By:       
 ROY WAUGH 
     Fire Commissioner 
 

By:       
 JEFF SCHAUB 
     Fire Commissioner 
 

By:       
 RANDY WOOLERY 
     Fire Commissioner 
 

37



2 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
JAMIE SILVA 
District Secretary 

 

  

38



3 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Territory 1 
Those portions of the West half of the Southeast quarter of Section 28, Township 27 North, 
Range 7 East, W.M. described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Southeast quarter of Section 28, Township 27 North, 
Range 7 East, W.M.; 
Thence North, along the West line thereof, to the Northwest corner of said Southeast quarter of 
Section 28; 
Thence East, along the North line of said Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter, to the 
Northwesterly right-of-way line of County Road as conveyed to Snohomish County by deed 
recorded under Auditor’s File No. 200601100670, records of Snohomish County, Washington; 
Thence Southwesterly, along said right-of-way line, to the South line of the North half of the 
Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter of said Section 28; 
Thence East, along the South line of said North half, to the Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence South, along the East line of the West half of the Southeast quarter of said Section 28, to 
the Southeast corner of said West half; 
Thence West, along the South line thereof, to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 2 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 28, Township 27 North, 
Range 7 East, W.M. described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of the West line of the West half of the East half of the Northeast 
quarter of the Southwest quarter of Section 28, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. with the 
centerline of United States of America, Department of Interior, Access Road as acquired by 
instrument recorded under Auditor’s File No. 1282635; 
Thence South 00°08’46” West 820.78 feet to the North line of High Rock County Road Survey 
No. 533; 
Thence Southeasterly, along North line of said County Road, to the East line of the West half of 
the East half of the Northeast quarter of the Southwest quarter of said Section 28; 
Thence North 00°06’23” East, along said East line, 861.31 feet to intersect said Department of 
Interior Access Road; 
Thence, along said centerline, North 63°13’14” West 162.24 feet; South 82°31’46” West 140.99 
feet; South 50°38’46” West 60.28 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 3 
That portion of the Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 18, Township 27 North, 
Range 7 East, W.M. described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of the South half of the South half of the North half of the 
Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 18, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, 
W.M. 
Thence East, along the South line of said South half to the Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence North, along the East line of said South half to the Northeast corner of said South half of 
the South half; 
Thence West, along the North line of said South half of the South half, to the Northwest corner 

39



4 
 

thereof; 
Thence South, along the West line of said South half of the South half, to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 4 
That portion of the Northwest quarter of the Southeast quarter of Section 18, Township 27 North, 
Range 7 East, W.M. described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the South half of the Northwest quarter of the Southeast 
quarter; 
Thence South 00°51’17” East, along the West line of said South half, a distance of 333.68 feet; 
Thence North 87°06’13” East a distance of 650.60 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 8 of 
Record of Survey filed under Auditor’s File No. 7706270144, records of Snohomish County, 
Washington, and the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence continue North 87°06’13” East a distance of 645.70 feet to the Northeast corner of said 
Lot 8; 
Thence South 00°51’17” East a distance of 338.94 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 8; 
Thence South 87°20’08” West a distance of 645.61 feet to the Southwest corner of said Lot 8; 
Thence North 00°51’17” West, along the West line of said Lot 8, a distance of 336.32 feet to the 
True Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 5 
That portion of the Southeast quarter of Section 19, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 19; 
Thence South 89°54’54” West, along the South line thereof, a distance of 640.92 feet to the 
Southeast corner of Lot 18 of Record of Survey recorded under Auditor’s File No. 7707080326, 
records of Snohomish County, Washington and the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence continue South 89°54’54” West, along the South line of said Lot 18, a distance of 679.94 
feet to the Southwest corner thereof; 
Thence North 03°05’52” East, along the West line of said Lot 18, a distance of 315.34 feet to the 
Northwest corner thereof; 
Thence East, along the North line thereof, a distance of 690.36 feet to the Northeast corner 
thereof; 
Thence South 05°00’00” West, along the East line thereof, a distance of 315.07 feet to the True 
Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 6 
That portion of the Southeast quarter of Section 19, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of said Section 19; 
Thence North 03°57’18” East, along the East line thereof, a distance of 1345.51 feet; 
Thence North 90°00’00” West a distance of 884.18 feet to the Southeast corner of Lot 23 of 
Record of Survey recorded under Auditor’s File No. 7707080326, records of Snohomish County, 
Washington and the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence continue North 90°00’00” West, along the South line of said Lot 18, a distance of 816.25 

40



5 
 

feet to the Southwest corner thereof; 
Thence North 27°02’55” East, along the West line thereof, a distance of 17.68 feet; 
Thence North 08°15’35” East, along said West line, a distance of 280.17 feet to the Northwest 
corner thereof; 
Thence South 80°37’33” East, along the North line thereof, a distance of 274.22 feet to a point of 
curvature to the left having a radius of 130.00 feet; 
Thence Easterly, along said curve, an arc distance of 97.37 feet and consuming a central angle of 
42°54’45”; 
Thence North 90°00’00” East, along the North line of said Lot 18, a distance of 456.54 feet to 
the Northeast corner thereof; 
Thence South 11°00’00” West, along the East line thereof, a distance of 263.27 feet to the True 
Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 7 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 19, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the East half of said Section 19; 
Thence South 02°18’54” West, along the West line thereof, a distance of 1280.89 feet to the 
Northwest corner of Lot 41 of Record of Survey recorded under Auditor’s File No. 7707080326, 
records of Snohomish County, Washington and the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence North 90°00’00” East, along the North line of said Lot 41, a distance of 525.61 feet to 
the Northeast corner thereof; 
Thence South 00°00’00” East, along the East line thereof, a distance of 341.50 feet to a point on 
the North line of Lot 40 of said survey; 
Thence South 64°30’00” East, along the North line of said Lot 40, a distance of 409.83 feet to 
the Northeast corner thereof; 
Thence South 11°33’13” West, along the East line thereof, a distance of 272.50 feet to the 
Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence North 90°00’00” West, along the South line of said Lot 40, a distance of 872.66 feet to 
the Southwest corner thereof; 
Thence North 02°18’54” East, along the West lines of said Lots 40 and 41, a distance of 785.56 
feet to the True Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 8 
That portion of the Northwest quarter of Section 29, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of the West half of the Southeast quarter of the Northwest 
quarter of Section 29, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M.; 
Thence East, along the South line of said West half, to the Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence North, along the East line of said West half, to the South right-of-way line of Lake 
Fontal Drive; 
Thence Westerly, along said South right-of-way line, to the West line of said West half; 
Thence South, along said West line, to the Point of Beginning. 
 
 

41



6 
 

Territory 9 
That portion of the Northwest quarter of Section 32, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 32, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, 
W.M.; 
Thence North 88°58’58” East, along the North line thereof, a distance of 665.05 feet to the 
Northwest corner of Lot 22 of Record of Survey recorded under Auditor’s File No. 9104045004, 
records of Snohomish County, Washington and the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence continue North 88°58’58” East, along said North line, a distance of 665.05 feet to the 
Northeast corner of said Lot 22; 
Thence South 00°10’36” West, along the East line of said Lot 22, a distance of 1307.30 feet to 
the Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence South 89°03’04” West, along the South line thereof, a distance of 667.04 feet to the 
Southwest corner thereof; 
Thence North 00°15’53” East, along the West line thereof, a distance of 1306.55 feet to the True 
Point of Beginning. 
 
Territory 10 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 32, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of the South half of the Northeast quarter of Section 32, 
Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M.; 
Thence South 88°30’09” West, along the North line of said South half, a distance of 930.04 feet 
to the Northeast corner of Lot 4, Second Addition to Mountain View Park, according to the Plat 
thereof recorded under Auditor’s File No. 7804110271, records of Snohomish County, 
Washington and the True Point of Beginning; 
Thence South 26°21’49” West, along the East line thereof, a distance of 439.35 feet to the 
Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence North 72°14’08” West, along the South line thereof, a distance of 50.0 feet to a point of 
curvature to the right having a radius of 270.0 feet; 
Thence Northwesterly, along said curve, an arc distance of 104.93 feet and consuming a central 
angle 22°16’01” to the Southwest corner of said Lot 4; 
Thence North 30°37’51” East, along the West line of said Lot 4, a distance of 460.40 feet to the 
Northwest corner thereof; 
Thence North 88°30’09” East, along said North line, a distance of 135.0 feet to the True Point of 
Beginning. 
 
Territory 11 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 32, Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M. 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of the South half of the Northeast quarter of Section 32, 
Township 27 North, Range 7 East, W.M.; 
Thence South 88°30’09” West, along the North line of said South half, a distance of 1905.04 
feet; 

42



7 
 

Thence South 01°29’51” East a distance of 127.99 feet; 
Thence North 86°32’42” West a distance of 31.23 feet; 
Thence South 03°27’18” West a distance of 60.00 feet to a point on the North line of Lot 8, 
Second Addition to Mountain View Park, according to the Plat thereof recorded under Auditor’s 
File No. 7804110271, records of Snohomish County, Washington and the True Point of 
Beginning; 
Thence South 86°32’42” East, along the North line of said Lot 8, a distance of 127.41 feet to the 
Northeast corner thereof; 
Thence South 18°02’04” East, along the East line of said Lot 8, a distance of 180.64 feet to the 
Southeast corner thereof; 
Thence South 58°54’58” West, along the South line of said Lot 8, a distance of 255.70 feet to the 
Southwest corner thereof; 
Thence North 13°03’04” West, along the West line of said Lot 8, a distance of 216.69 feet to a 
point of curvature to the right having a radius of 82.00 feet; 
Thence Northeasterly, along said curve, an arc distance of 152.43 feet and consuming a central 
angle of 106°30’22” to the True Point of Beginning. 
  

43



8 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 

Territory 1 
27072800400300 
27072800400400 
27072800400500 
27072800400600 
27072800401000 
 
Territory 2 
27072800300200 
27072800300201 
 
Territory 3 
27071800400200 
 
Territory 4 
27071800402700 
 
Territory 5 
27071900402200 
 
Territory 6 
27071900400300 
 
Territory 7 
27071900100700 
27071900100800 
27071900102600 
 
Territory 8 
27072900201100 
27072900201101 
 
Territory 9 
27073200200300 
 
Territory 10 
00668900000400 
 
Territory 11 
00668900000800 
 
 

44



45



46



47



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 

48



 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

1 of 7 

1.0 PURPOSE: 
 

1.1 The purpose of this section is to establish a set of guidelines by which department 
members may travel out of the District on official business and to provide an approved 
method to ensure that all reasonable and necessary expenses related to travel and the 
operation of the District are provided. 

 
2.0 DEFINITIONS: 

 
2.1 Conference - Examples may include, but are not limited to, a symposium, seminar, 

forum, or convention associated with a league, association, alliance, etc., can be 
interpreted to include any formal training session typically attended by an audience from a 
wide geographic area and organized by a regionally or nationally known entity. 

 
2.2 Eligible Meals - Meals which are sufficiently related to work that the cost will be paid by 

the District. Eligible meals can be purchased, subject to this policy and tax regulations, on 
either a taxable or non-taxable basis. 
 

2.3 Employee - References to “employee” can also be interpreted to include all other 
authorized personnel associated with the District. 
 

2.4 Ineligible Meals - Meals which do not meet the IRS qualifications for a tax free meal or 
are not sufficiently related to work or employee convenience to justify District payment. 
 

2.5 Per Diem Rates - The District uses per diem rates for meals and incidentals as 
established by the Office of the General Services Administration (GSA) or as hereby after 
amended obtained and maintained by the Washington State Office of Financial 
Management. The most current per diem rates can be found at the following web 
address: https://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877 by inputting the State and City or 
the zip code to where you are traveling. Based on M&IE for that location you can find the 
breakdown per meal located here: https://gsa.gov/portal/content/101518. Per Diem 
rates include the costs of tax and gratuity. 
 

2.6 Reimbursement - Can also be interpreted to mean “paid for by the District.” Eligible 
expenses need not necessarily be reimbursements to the individual, they can be 
expenses paid by the District directly to the vendor. 
 

2.7 Special Event - An event that is not regularly scheduled. If scheduled, it occurs no more 
frequently than annually. 
 

2.8 Tax Home - The IRS identifies this as your regular place of business regardless of where 
you maintain your family home. It includes the entire city or general area in which your 
business or work is located. 
 

2.9 Travel Status - The IRS defines this as a time when your duties require you to be away 
from the general area of your “tax home” substantially longer than an ordinary day’s work, 

49

https://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877
https://gsa.gov/portal/content/101518


 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

2 of 7 

and you need to sleep or rest to meet the demands of your work while away from home. 
(In almost all cases, this means an overnight stay is involved.) 
 

2.10 Hotel Credit Card Pre-Authorization – When traveling outside the District and lodging is 
required you can request the District do a pre-authorization for your hotel reservation. This 
eliminates the employees need to be reimbursed for this expense. 

 
3.0 POLICY: 
 

3.1 This policy shall apply to all members of the Fire District. 
 

3.2 All travel requests for intermittent and overnight travel outside the District must be 
approved in advance by the Fire Chief or designee. 
 

3.3 Reimbursement requests must be received within twenty (20) days of completion of 
travel. Receipts shall be required to support vouchers for reimbursement. All District credit 
card receipts must be submitted within seven (7) days of completion of travel.  
 

3.4 Privately Owned Vehicles may be used whenever a District vehicle is not available, and/or 
when the time the official or employee will be absent exceeds two or more days, or when 
it is otherwise impractical to do so. Drivers must have a valid operator’s license and the 
car must be insured to the state’s minimum liability standards.  
 

3.5 Employees choosing to drive a personal vehicle when a district vehicle is available, while 
traveling for training, are covered by worker’s compensation for bodily injury to the 
employee. Injuries to other persons or damage to employees and/or other vehicles are 
treated for insurance purposes with the employee’s insurance as primary coverage. 
 

3.6 Budgeted monies for reimbursement must be available and authorized. All persons are to 
exercise good judgment to avoid unnecessary District expense. 
 

3.7 Applications for Travel / Leave must indicate: 
 
3.7.1 Purpose of travel – Include conference / training seminar flyer, including dates 

and meals that are included 
 

3.7.2 Destination – Where the training / conference will occur 
 

3.7.3 Departure and return dates – Per Diem is allowable only on those dates you are 
traveling for district purposes.  
 

3.7.4 Transportation methods being used (airline, bus, rental car, etc.) 
 

3.7.5 Other costs associated with the travel 
 

3.8 Travel expenses other than per diem, to the extent possible, will be paid for using the 
District credit card. Receipts for the credit card must be submitted to the District within 

50



 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

3 of 7 

seven (7) days of completion of the travel. The District does not provide advances for 
travelers. A statement of expenses shall be completed and submitted for each trip for 
which reimbursement is being requested. Per Diem expenses shall be submitted using a 
travel reimbursement form. 
 

3.9 The following travel expenses shall be reimbursable: 
 

3.9.1 Mileage:  Employees required to use his/her own vehicle for department business 
shall be compensated at the current rate established by the Federal government 
for use of Privately Owned Vehicles (POV) for business purposes. The current 
rate defined as the rate in effect for the period of the travel. All requests for 
reimbursement of mileage must be on the District approved travel reimbursement 
form, and must include starting point and ending point and be signed by the 
Program Manager whose budget the travel expense is coming from.  

 
3.9.1.1 Employees traveling out of District on a temporary assignment, training, 

or other approved business should first inquire as to the availability of a 
District owned vehicle. No mileage reimbursement will be approved when 
a District vehicle is used for travel. 

 
3.9.1.2 Mileage reimbursement for commuting to and from the employee’s 

residence and the employee’s duty location in the District is not allowed. 
Employees may be reimbursed for mileage within the District when such 
use is to further District business and/or when that business occurs 
outside of the employee’s regular working hours.   

 
3.9.1.3 Mileage reimbursement for travel outside the District is allowed only when 

an approved authorization has been prepared, or with the approval of the 
Program Manager. 

 
3.9.1.4 For assignments outside of the District, mileage reimbursement may be 

approved from district headquarters to the out of District assignment, or 
from the employee’s residence (when traveling directly from the 
employee’s residence)   to the out of District location, whichever is less. 

 
3.9.1.5 When two or more employees are traveling together, only the owner of 

the vehicle being driven shall be eligible for mileage reimbursement. 
 
3.9.2 Meals:  District employees in travel status, traveling under an approved travel 

authorization, or with permission of the Program Manager, are entitled to 
reimbursement for meals at the current rate established by the U.S. General 
Services Administration for employee traveling on official business. Under no 
circumstances may an employee seek reimbursement for the same meals using 
both per diem and the District’s credit card.  

 
3.9.2.1 Employees shall not be reimbursed for meals where the cost of a meal is 

included in the registration fee. If a meal is included in the training the 

51



 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

4 of 7 

amount of that meal will be deducted from the amount allowable for that 
day per the GSA meals and expenses breakdown located here: 
https://gsa.gov/portal/content/101518. When a conference, hotel, etc. 
provides a Continental breakfast, the employee is still eligible for per 
diem for that meal. 

 
3.9.2.2 GSA rules regarding the reimbursement percentage allowable for per 

diem during the days of travel to and from the conference, training 
seminar, etc. shall apply. This is currently set at 75% of the per diem rate. 

 
3.9.2.3 Payment for table service, commonly referred to as a tip, is reimbursable 

as a necessary and reasonable expense, but not in addition to daily per 
diem rates. Table service expense shall not exceed 20% of the total cost 
of the meal. 
 

3.9.3 Lodging:  District employees traveling under an approved travel authorization, or 
with permission of the Program Manager, are entitled to reimbursement for 
lodging based on the actual cost, not to exceed the current rate established by 
the U.S. General Services Administration for employees traveling on official 
business. The current available rate can be located by entering the City and State 
or zip code to which travel occurs at this URL: 
https://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877. 
 
3.9.3.1 Individual reimbursement requests are required for each individual 

seeking reimbursement from the District.  
 

3.9.3.2 When two or more employees share a room, the receipt shall show the 
room registered to all occupants. Each occupant shall obtain his/her own 
receipt of room charges. Except as noted below, the reimbursements 
submitted for the room shall not exceed the U.S. General Services 
Administration approved schedule. 

 
3.9.3.3 Employees will not be reimbursed for lodging expenses when the cost of 

lodging is included in the registration fee. 
 

3.9.3.4 Lodging fees may exceed the U.S. General Services Administration 
approved schedule when attending conferences and seminars, and the 
lodging is reserved in the hotel(s) associated with the conference or 
seminar or with prior supervisory approval. 

 
3.9.3.5 Employees traveling for special assignments, where lodging expenses 

are dictated by a special rate schedule, will be reimbursed according to 
the schedule rate and not the U.S. General Services Administration 
schedule. 

 

52

https://gsa.gov/portal/content/101518
https://www.gsa.gov/portal/content/104877


 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

5 of 7 

3.9.4 Transportation charges other than privately owned vehicles:  Transportation 
charges are reimbursable expenses when authorized on an approved travel 
authorization. The District’s credit card shall be used when possible to procure 
transportation services. 
 
3.9.4.1 Reimbursement for airplane, train, or bus travel will be coach, tourist, or 

equivalent rate. 
 

3.9.4.2 Car rentals must be approved by the Fire Chief or designee before rental 
occurs. Mid-size rates, or equivalent, are the highest rates approved for 
reimbursement. Exceptions may be made for large groups. Car rentals 
shall not be provided where free transportation is provided between the 
airport and lodging, and the training facility and lodging. 

 
3.9.4.3 Tickets for transportation costs may be charged to the District through 

any local travel agency, or other approved transportation agency. 
 

3.9.4.4 The District will pay for one checked bag for every week of travel per 
person unless more is authorized by the Fire Chief or designee.   An 
exception is granted for district-sponsored travel with bunker gear, 
special operations gear, Honor Guard equipment, and Pipes & Drums 
gear.  

 
3.9.5 Miscellaneous travel expenses: The following are examples of possible 

transportation expenses that, if essential to the transaction of District business, 
may be reimbursable. Miscellaneous fees exceeding fifteen dollars ($15.00) must 
have a receipt in order to be reimbursed. However, a detailed description must be 
provided for any reimbursement not documented with a receipt and an 
explanation of why no receipt was available (the list is not all inclusive).  

 
3.9.5.1 Transportation fares (i.e. taxis, shuttles, buses, rideshare, etc.) 

 
3.9.5.2 Parking fees 

 
3.9.5.3 Ferry and/or bridge tolls 

 
3.9.6 The following are not considered essential to the transaction of District business 

and, therefore, are not reimbursable (the list is not all inclusive). 
 
3.9.6.1 Laundry or valet services 

 
3.9.6.2 Movie, radio, or television rental costs 

 
3.9.6.3 Tips and gratuities other than meals and transportation 

 
3.9.6.4 Trip, personal, or medical insurance to provide coverage for the period of 

travel (except where required by law) 

53



 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

6 of 7 

 
3.9.6.5 Alcoholic beverages, snacks, tobacco 

 
3.9.6.6 Memberships 

 
3.9.6.7 Mileage for non-official functions 

 
3.9.6.8 Expenses incurred by persons who are not District employees covered by 

an approved travel authorization 
 

3.9.6.9 Additional travel costs incurred when an indirect route is taken for 
personal reasons 

 
3.9.6.10  Fines, penalties, and/or forfeitures 
 

3.9.7 Other miscellaneous reimbursements: Reimbursements for meals and/ or light 
snacks may be made when not in travel status provided the Fire Chief or his/her 
designee approves the reimbursement in advance and provided there is sufficient 
budgetary capacity for the reimbursement under the following circumstances:  
 
3.9.7.1 Meals in connection with authorized attendance at meetings, 

conferences, or conventions 
 

3.9.7.2 Meals for employees engaged in authorized emergency repair or 
operations 
 
3.9.7.2.1 Single emergency response events occurring during regular 

meal times, exceeding three hours where providing food and 
beverages to employees is necessary for employee health and 
safety. 

 
3.9.7.3 One-time meal expenses for persons serving on a non-paid ad-hoc board 

or committee, such as employee selection or consultant selection 
committees, and for an approved volunteer recognition function. 

 
3.9.7.4 Meals, coffee, and light refreshments served to elected and appointed 

officials and employees at a meeting where the purpose of the meeting is 
to conduct official district business. 
 
3.9.7.4.1 Board meetings, retreats, training events, staff meetings 

scheduled to occur during regular meal times that are expected 
to run more than three hours. 

 
3.10 Personal leave (vacation) may be taken before and after travel outside the District. 

Personal leave may not be taken during the time period authorized as travel period. 
 

54



 

SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 
POLICY 

POLICY NUMBER: 1-33 
SECTION: ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES 
TITLE: MEALS, LODGING, TRAVEL AND INCIDENTALS 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 6/27/02 
REVISION DATE(S): 3/12/09, 8/3/17, 12/18/18, 10/30/19 
 
 

7 of 7 

3.11 If an employee becomes ill when in travel status, they shall contact their supervisor or 
make notification through the chain of command as soon as possible. 

 
3.12 The Fire Chief, or his/her designees, has the final authority for determining who will travel 

outside the District. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND REVISED AT A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS,  
SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7 THIS 30TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Randy Fay, Commissioner    Jeff Schaub, Commissioner 

 
___________________________________   ___________________________________ 

William Snyder, Commissioner    Roy Waugh, Commissioner 

 
___________________________________   ___________________________________ 

Leslie Jo Wells, Commissioner    Randy Woolery, Commissioner 

 
 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

62



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

63



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

64



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

CALL ON 
COMMISSIONERS 

 

65



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

66



 

 

 

 

LAKE STEVENS FIRE 
REGULAR BUSINESS 

67



 

 

 

 

JOINT MEETING BUSINESS 

68


	01 Cover
	02 Joint Agenda
	02.01 Joint Agenda 2019-10-30

	03 District 7 Regular Business
	03.01 Fire Chief Report
	03.01.01 2019-10-30 Fire Chief Report

	03.02 Consent Agenda
	03.02.01 Benefit Voucher 19-02497 to 19-02504 (Previously Signed)
	03.02.02 Benefit Voucher 19-02514 L&I
	03.02.03 AP Vouchers 19-02516 to 19-02674
	03.02.04 2019-10-31 Payroll Summary
	03.02.05 Minutes 2019-10-10
	03.02.06 Thank You Email

	03.03 Discussion Items
	03.03.01 Resolution - Approving Annexations
	SNOHOMISH COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NO. 7

	03.03.02 Budget Amendment #3

	03.04 Action Items
	03.04.01 Policy 1-33
	03.04.02 Emergency Medical Supplies RFP

	03.05 Committee Reports
	03.06 Other Meetings Attended
	03.07 Old Business
	03.08 Call on Commissioners
	03.09 Executive Session

	04 LSF Regular Business
	05 Joint Meeting Business



